

# **Operating Instructions**

# Exicom Eagle ET-306, ET-316, ET-336 (valid for Hardware Revision 1.xx)

R. STAHL HMI Systems GmbH Im Gewerbegebiet Pesch 14 50767 Köln

> Version 1.7E Issue: 14.11.2007

# Table of contents

	Description	Page
	Table of contents	2
1	Preface	4
2	Exicom Eagle ET-306, ET-316, ET-336	4
2.1	Device function	4
2.1.1	Keyboard features	4
2.2	Technical details	5
2.3	Product identification and conformity to standards	6
2.3.1	ATEX	6
2.3.2	NEC	6
2.3.2.1	UL (Underwriters Laboratories)	6
2.3.3	IEC	7
2.3.3.1	Inmetro (UL do Brasil Certificações)	7
2.3.4	GOST R	7
2.4	Power supply	7
2.4.1	Operator interfaces	7
2.4.2	Reader modules	7
2.5	Permitted maximum values	8
2.5.1	External, non-intrinsically safe circuits	8
2.5.2	External inherently safe optical interface	8
2.5.3	External intrinsically safe circuits	9
2.6	Type code	14
2.7	Safety Advice	15
2.7.1	Installation and operation	15
2.7.2	Special conditions	16
2.7.3	Software installation	16
2.7.3.1	Software installation using a USB Memory Stick	16
2.7.3.2	Software installation with external USB devices	16
2.7.4	USB interfaces	17
2.7.4.1	I.S. USB interfaces USB0, USB2	17
2.7.4.2	Ex-e USB interfaces USB1, USB3	17
3	Installation	19
3.1	General information	19
3.2	ET-306, ET-316, ET-336	19
4	Application	20
5	Assembly and disassembly	20
5.1	General information	20
5.2	Cut-out ET-3x6	20
6	Operation	20
6.1	General information	20
6.2	Connections ET-3x6	21
6.2.1	Dip switch settings S3 and S4	22
6.3	Connections Ex-e terminals (X12)	23

6.3.1	Connection details of the Ex-e terminals	23
6.3.2	Cable types and cross sections	23
7	Maintenance, service	24
7.1.1	Servicing	24
8	Troubleshooting	24
9	Disposal	25
9.1.1	ROHS directive 2002/95/EC	25
9.1.2	China ROHS labeling	25
10	Accessories	26
10.1	Phoenix Contact terminal block	26
10.1.1	Data sheet Mini-Ex-terminal	26
11	Certificates	28
11.1	Exicom ET-306, ET-316, ET-336	28
11.1.1	Declaration of EC conformity	28
11.1.2	EC type examination certificate	29
11.1.3	UL certificate	38
11.1.3.1	UL control drawing	39
11.1.4	UL do Brasil certificate	46
11.1.5	Gost certificate	47
11.2	Phoenix Contact terminal block	49
11.2.1	EC type examination certificate	49

## 1 Preface

These operating instructions cover all aspects relevant to explosion protection. Please refer to the additional documentation such as the EC type examination certificate or the hardware manual (etc.) for further information concerning connections and installation.

## 2 Exicom Eagle ET-306, ET-316, ET-336

## 2.1 Device function

The ET-306 (10.4" display), ET-316 (10.4" display) and ET-336 (15" display) operator interfaces are explosion-proof equipment for installation in hazardous environments of zone 1, 2, 21 and 22 according to ATEX guideline 94/9/EC.

The operator interfaces are intelligent visualization systems for automation applications. They can be installed in control cabinets or panels, for example.

Users operate the device via the membrane keyboard integrated into the front plate and via the LCD display with touch screen.

Communication with control and automation systems runs via the serial interfaces (RS-232, RS-422/485, Ethernet) connected in the "e"-area at the back of the devices. Various peripheral devices, such as barcode scanners, card readers, USB sticks and WLAN / Bluetooth modules can be connected via USB interfaces or optional fitted modules.

With a wealth of functions, these operator interfaces provide optimum visualization. Their active communication concept in combination with integrated functionality reduce the automation system workload.

The ET-306, ET-316 and ET-336 operator interfaces are compatible with their predecessors (ET-8A, ET-12) both in terms of software and functionality.

### 2.1.1 Keyboard features

- Pressing two keys at once (e.g. F1 + F7) is not supported by the operator interfaces ! In such a case, the system considers the key that was pressed first as "active" and implements the associated functions and / or key bit functions ! The key pressed second is ignored.
- Pressing any three of the following keys at the same time has the same effect as pressing Ctrl + Alt + Del ! The keys are: F1, F2, F7 and F8.

### ET-306 only:

The S1 – S10 softkeys can **NOT** be used in combination with Shift / Alt / Ctrl ! The system will only execute the original key command.

### 2.2 Technical details

- Display: ET-306: 10.4" TFT Touch Color Display, resolution: VGA 640x480 pixels
   ET-316: 10.4" TFT Touch Color Display, resolution: SVGA 800x600 pixels
   ET-336: 15" TFT Touch Color Display, resolution: XGA 1024x768 pixels
- Touch screen: 8-wire analogue resistive
- CFL backlight
- Keyboard: Polyester membrane on FR4 material, > 1 million actions
  - ET-306: 12 blank function keys that can be customized,
    - 10 soft keys, alphanumerical block
  - ET-316: 12 function keys
  - ET-336: 8 function keys
- Processor: Geode GX1, 300 MHz
- Main memory: 64MB RAM
- Data memory: 64MB Flash
- global, multilingual language support
- Interfaces:
  - COM1: RS-232/422/485
  - COM2: RS-232/422/485 (not simultaneously) plug-in modules for readers (barcode scanner, Wiegand reader or Proximity reader (optional)

2x USB Ex-e; 2x USB I.S. (alternatively internal / external) Ethernet (op is) optical fiber interface

- PS2 interface for external I.S. keyboard (optional)
- Housing protection type: IP 65 according to EN 60529; front: IP66
- Temperature range –10 ... +55 °C
- <sup>C</sup> 24V DC (20.4 VDC...28.8 VDC) power supply directly in integrated Ex-e terminal box

### 2.3 Product identification and conformity to standards

Manufacturer: Type code: R. STAHL HMI Systems GmbH ET-306 / ET-316 / ET-336

The ET-306 / ET-316 / ET-336 operator interfaces have the following Ex classification and complies with the standards and directives to:

#### 2.3.1 ATEX

Classification:

CE classification: Testing authority and certificate number: Ex classification:

Standard and directive:

- directive 94/9 EC
- EN 60079-0 : 2004 (General requirements)
- EN 60079-1 : 2004 ("d")
- EN 60079-7 : 2003 ("e")
- EN 60079-18 : 2004 ("m")
- prEN 60079-28 : 2005 ("optical radiation")
- EN 50020 : 2002 ("i")
- prEN 61241-0 : 2004 (dust)
- EN 61241-1 : 2004 (dust)

#### 2.3.2 NEC

#### 2.3.2.1 UL (Underwriters Laboratories)

Classification:

Certificate number: Number of control drawing: Ex classification: 2006-12-07 E307676 2006 33 7000 0 Class I, Zone 1, AEx d e m ib [ib] IIC T4 Class I, Division 2, Group A, T4

Standard and directive:

- NEC 505
- UL 508
- UL 60079-0
- UL 60079-1
- UL 60079-7
- UL 60079-11
- UL 60079-18
- ANSI/ISA-12.12.01-200

### 2.3.3 IEC

### 2.3.3.1 Inmetro (UL do Brasil Certificações)

Classification:

Certificate number: Ex classification: 06/UL-BRCR-0001 BR-Ex d e mb ib [ib] IIC T4 -10 °C ≤ Tamb ≤ +60 °C

Standard and directive:

- IEC 60079-0 : 2000
- IEC 60079-1 : 2001
- IEC 60079-7 : 2001
- IEC 60079-11 : 1999
- IEC 60079-18 : 2004

### 2.3.4 GOST R

Classification: Certificate number: Ex classification:

ROSS DE.GB04.V00566 2Exdemib[ib]sIICT4X DIP A21 T<sub>A</sub>90 °C, IP65

Standard and directive:

- GOST R 51330.0-99
- GOST R 51330.1-99
- GOST R 51330.8-99
- GOST R 51330.10-99
- GOST R 51330.14-99
- GOST R 51330.17-99
- GOST R MЭK 61241-1-1-99
- GOST R 22782.3-77

## 2.4 Power supply

### 2.4.1 Operator interfaces

Power supply:	24.0 VDC (min. 20.4 VDC; max. 28.8 VDC)
Power consumption:	max. 1.9 A

### 2.4.2 Reader modules

a) WCR1	external power supply module with intrinsically safe power supply circuit and the following maximum values: $U_0 = 12.4 \text{ VDC}$ $I_0 = 200 \text{ mA}$
b) RSi1	internal intrinsically safe power supply circuit $U_0 = 10.4 \text{ VDC}$ $I_0 = 220 \text{ mA}$

### 2.5 Permitted maximum values

### 2.5.1 External, non-intrinsically safe circuits

Innut	voltago	(V1).
πpuι	voilage	$(\Lambda I)$ .

	Rated voltage Power consumption for U <sub>rated</sub> Max. operating voltage U <sub>m</sub>	24 VDC (+20% / -15% 1.9 A max 30 VDC	)
	RS-422/-232 COM 1 (X2):		
	Rated voltage Max. operating voltage U <sub>m</sub>	RS-422: 5 VDC 253 VAC	RS-232: ±12 VDC
	RS-422/-232 COM 2 (X3):		
	Rated voltage Max. operating voltage $U_m$	RS-422: 5 VDC 253 VAC	RS-232: ±12 VDC
	USB-1 (X5):		
	Rated voltage Max. operating voltage U <sub>m</sub>	5 VDC 253 VAC	
	USB-3 (X7):		
	Rated voltage Max. operating voltage U <sub>m</sub>	5 VDC 253 VAC	
2.5.2	External inherently safe optical	interface	

Ethernet optical fiber (X10):

Rated voltage	5 VDC
Wavelength	1350 nm
Radiant power	≤ 35 mW

### 2.5.3 External intrinsically safe circuits

USB-0 (X4):

The maximum values for group IIC are:

Ui	=	-	V	Uo	=	5.9	V			
li	=	-	mA	Ιo	=	1.02	А			
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	6.02	W			
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	8	13	30	43	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	10	5	2	1	μH

 $C_{o}$  and  $L_{o}$  pairs directly above/underneath each other may be used.

#### The maximum values for group IIB are:

Ui	=	-	V	Uo	=	5.9	V			
li	=	-	mA	l <sub>o</sub>	=	1.02	А			
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	6.02	W			
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	14	26	50	89	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	0.1	0.05	0.02	0.01	mH

 $C_{o}$  and  $L_{o}$  pairs directly above/underneath each other may be used.

USB-2 (X6):

The maximum values for group IIC are:

Ui	=	-	V	Uo	=	5.9	V			
li	=	-	mA	I <sub>o</sub>	=	1.02	А			
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	6.02	W			
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	8	13	30	43	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	10	5	2	1	μH

 $C_{o}$  and  $L_{o}$  pairs directly above/underneath each other may be used.

#### The maximum values for group IIB are:

Ui	=	-	V	Uo	=	5.9	V			
li	=	-	mA	l <sub>o</sub>	=	1.02	А			
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	6.02	W			
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	14	26	50	89	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	0.1	0.05	0.02	0.01	mH

 $C_{o}$  and  $L_{o}$  pairs directly above/underneath each other may be used.

### Reader (X8) +Uint 1 (power supply circuit, X8.0):

			9.000				
Ui	=	-	V	Uo	=	10.4	V
li	=	-	mA	l <sub>o</sub>	=	220	mA
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	2.29	W
Ci	=	-	μF	Co	=	2.41	μF
Li	=	-	mH	Lo	=	0.02	mH

#### The maximum values for group IIC are:

The maximum values for group IIB are:

Ui	=	-	V	Uo	=	10.4	V
li	=	-	mA	Ι <sub>ο</sub>	=	220	mA
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	2.29	W
Ci	=	-	μF	Co	=	12	μF
Li	=	-	mH	Lo	=	50	μH

Reader WCR1 (connection voltage supply, X8.1-2):

#### The maximum values for group IIC are:

Ui	=	12.4	V	Uo	=	-	V
li	=	200	mA	l <sub>o</sub>	=	-	mA
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	-	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	-	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	-	mH

#### The maximum values for group IIB are:

Ui	=	12.4	V	Uo	=	-	V
li	=	200	mA	Ιo	=	-	mA
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	-	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	-	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	-	mH

### Reader WCR1 (power supply Reader, X8.3-4):

Ui	=	-	V		Uo	=	5.88	V			
li	=	-	mA		l <sub>o</sub>	=	200	mA			
Pi	=	-	mW		Po	=	1.18	W			
Ci	=	4.6	μF		Co	=	28.4	μF			
Li	=	100	nH		Lo	=	1.9	μH			

#### The maximum values for group IIC are:

### The maximum values for group IIB are:

			<b>J</b> • • •				
Ui	=	-	V	Uo	=	5.88	V
li	=	-	mA	l <sub>o</sub>	=	200	mA
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	1.18	W
Ci	=	4.6	μF	Co	=	56.4	μF
Li	=	100	nH	Lo	=	19.9	μH

### Reader WCR1 (signal input / output, X8.5-8):

#### The maximum values for group IIC are:

Ui	=	15	V	Uo	=	5.88	V
li	=	500	mA	l <sub>o</sub>	=	56	mA
Pi	=	2.5	W	Po	=	83	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	34	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	2	μH

#### The maximum values for group IIB are:

Ui	=	15	V	Uo	=	5.88	V
li	=	500	mA	I <sub>o</sub>	=	56	mA
Pi	=	2.5	W	Po	=	83	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	63	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	20	μH

### Reader RSi1 (connection voltage supply, X8.1–2):

Ui	=	12.4	V		Uo	=	-	V			
li	=	220	mA		l <sub>o</sub>	=	-	mA			
Pi	=	2.7	W		Po	=	-	mW			
Ci	=	0	μF		Co	=	-	μF			
Li	=	0	mH		Lo	=	-	mH			

#### The maximum values for group IIC are:

The maximum values for group IIB are:

Ui	=	12.4	V	Uo	=	-	V
li	=	220	mA	Ιo	=	-	mA
Pi	=	2.7	W	Po	=	-	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	-	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	-	mH

### Reader RSi1 (power supply Reader, X8.3-4):

#### The maximum values for group IIC are:

Ui	=	-	V	Uo	=	5.4	V
li	=	-	mA	Ιo	=	220	mA
Pi	=	-	W	Po	=	1.19	W
Ci	=	4.2	μF	Co	=	39.8	μF
Li	=	100	nH	Lo	=	1.9	μH

#### The maximum values for group IIB are:

Ui	=	-	V	Uo	=	5.4	V
li	=	-	mA	l <sub>o</sub>	=	220	mA
Pi	=	-	W	Po	=	1.19	W
Ci	=	4.2	μF	Co	=	69.8	μF
Li	=	100	nH	Lo	=	19.9	μH

### Reader RSi1 (signal input / output, X8.5-8):

Ui	=	15	V	Uo	=	5.4	V
li	=	500	mA	l <sub>o</sub>	=	49	mA
Pi	=	2.5	W	Po	=	62	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	45	μF
L	=	0	mH	Lo	=	2	μH

#### The maximum values for group IIC are:

The maximum values for group IIB are:

Ui	=	15	V	Uo	=	5.4	V
li	=	500	mA	Ιo	=	49	mA
Pi	=	2.5	W	Po	=	62	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	78	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	20	mH

Keyboard (X9):

#### The maximum values for group IIC are:

Ui	=	-	V	Uo	=	5.9	V	
li	=	-	mA	l <sub>o</sub>	=	200	mA	
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	1.18	W	
Ci	=	14	μF	Co	=	19	29	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	2	1	μH

 $C_{o}$  and  $L_{o}$  pairs directly above/underneath each other may be used.

#### The maximum values for group IIB are:

Ui	=	-	V	Uo	=	5.9	V			
li	=	-	mA	Ιo	=	200	mA			
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	1.18	W			
Ci	=	14	μF	Co	=	13	23	46	86	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	100	50	20	10	μH

 $C_{o}$  and  $L_{o}$  pairs directly above/underneath each other may be used.

#### Please note !

- The terminal name for the keyboard as listed on the TÜV 05 ATEX 7176 X EC-type examination certificate is wrong !
  - "X7" is incorrect, the correct terminal name is X9 !
- Do <u>NOT</u> connect the optional external keyboard to live equipment !

## 2.6 Type code



Plug-in module (optional) 306 / 316 / 336

Product type:

Version	Plug-in module
Exicom ET-xxx	-
Exicom ET-xxx-RSi	Barcode or proximity reader
Exicom ET-xxx-WCR	Wiegand reader

### 2.7 Safety Advice

This chapter is a summary of the key safety measures. The summary is supplementary to existing rules which staff also have to study.

The safety of persons and equipment in hazardous areas depends on compliance with all relevant safety regulations. Thus, the installation and maintenance staff carry a particular responsibility, requiring precise knowledge of the applicable regulations and conditions.

#### 2.7.1 Installation and operation

Please note the following when installing and operating the device:

- During assembly and operation of the operator interface electrostatic surface charging must not exceed that caused by manual rubbing.
- The national regulations for installation and assembly apply (e.g. EN 60079-1).
- The operator interfaces may be installed in zones 1, 2, 21 or 22.
- The intrinsically safe circuits must be installed according to applicable regulations.
- The operator interface must only be switched on when it is closed.
- When installed in zones 1, 2, 21 and 22, intrinsically safe devices suitable for zones 1, 2, 21 and 22 may be connected to the intrinsically safe power supply circuits.
- The safe maximum values of the connected field device(s) must correspond to the values listed on the data sheet or the EC type examination certificate.
- Interconnecting several active devices in an intrinsically safe circuit may result in different safe maximum values. This could compromise intrinsic safety !
- After switching the operator interface off, wait for at least 10 minutes before opening it.
- Before opening the housing lid users must ensure that all non-intrinsically safe circuits have been switched off. Circuits supplied from different sources may be connected ! Please note that all associated equipment (such as the SK-KJ1710, for example) must also be switched off !
- National safety and accident prevention rules.
- Generally accepted technical rules.
- Safety instructions contained in these operating instructions.
- Any damage may compromise the explosion protection !

Use the operator interface for its intended purpose only (see "Function").

Incorrect or unauthorized use and non-compliance with the instructions in this manual will void any warranty on our part.

No changes may be made to the operator interface or its components that compromise explosion protection !

The operator interface may only be installed and operated in an undamaged, dry and clean condition !

### 2.7.2 Special conditions

- The housing of the operator interface must be protected against prolonged UV radiation.
- The operator interface and any connected equipment must be incorporated into the same potential equalization system (see installation example in the Hardware Manual). An alternative would be to connect only devices that are safely isolated from earth potential.

#### 2.7.3 Software installation

Installation of software on the operator interfaces:

#### 2.7.3.1 Software installation using a USB Memory Stick

You may only use USB memory sticks permitted for use by R. STAHL HMI Systems GmbH. These USB memory sticks are below and in general referred to by R. STAHL HMI Systems GmbH as "USB(i) Drives". Data may only be copied onto the operator interfaces and software may only be installed with these USB Drives.

- In hazardous areas you may only use I.S. certified USB Drives supplied by R. STAHL HMI Systems GmbH.
- In an industrial area, a permitted, non-explosion proof memory stick may be connected to the I.S. USB interface of the operator interface after having been connected to any PC.

If devices are connected to the I.S. USB interface that have not been approved by R. STAHL HMI Systems GmbH, protective elements may become damaged, thus compromising the intrinsic safety of the interfaces.

In this case R. STAHL HMI Systems GmbH can no longer guarantee the intrinsic safety of the device.

#### 2.7.3.2 Software installation with external USB devices

Software may be installed with the aid of any external USB devices subject to the following conditions:

- The software is installed in the safe area.
- The USB devices are connected to the Ex-e USB interfaces USB1 or USB3 (X5 or X7) with the VB-USB-INST1 connection cable.



Connection diagram with VB-USB-INST1 (hard disk, CD/DVD with power supply)

### 2.7.4 USB interfaces

The ET-3x6 operator interfaces have 2 USB interface channels.

- Channel 1 is wired in parallel to USB0 (X4) and USB2 (X6) and can be used for the internal (X4) or external (X6) connection of an USB Drive.
- Channel 2 is wired in parallel to USB1 (X5) and USB3 (X7) and can be used to connect an external USB device.
- The connection diagram for the ET-3x6 interfaces can be found in <u>chapter 6.2</u>, <u>connections ET-3x6</u>

### 2.7.4.1 I.S. USB interfaces USB0, USB2

The USB0 and USB2 I.S. USB interfaces (X4 and X6) are intended for the internal or external connection of USBi Drives.

The maximum value for the joint power supply of USB0 and USB2 is 500 mA.

### 2.7.4.2 Ex-e USB interfaces USB1, USB3

The USB1 and USB3 Ex-e USB interfaces (X5 and X7) are intended for the connection of external USB devices.

The maximum value for the joint power supply of USB1 and USB3 is 500 mA.

### 2.7.4.2.1 Connection variations for Ex-e USB interfaces

Both Ex-e USB interfaces have an identical structure. The X5 (USB 1) and X7 (USB 3) terminals are for the connection of devices that can be both intrinsically safe or not intrinsically safe. The following versions are possible:

- 1. If a USB device that is not connected to the mains is connected, voltage can be supplied from the internal power supply (terminal 1).
- 2. If a USB device that is connected to the mains is connected, the internal power supply (terminal 1) must not be connected. The power must then be supplied externally.
- The interrupting capacity of the fuses of the internal USB power supplies is 1.5 kA.
- The tripping characteristic of the fuses is T (time-lag, type T fuse).
- The USB accessory parts are fitted inside an appropriate housing.

### 2.7.4.2.2 Connection terminal of protection type "e" (EN 60079-7):

The X5 and X7 connection terminals have protection type "e".

Flexible cables with a cross section of  $0.2 - 2.5 \text{ mm}^2$  can be used.

The maximum cable length for the connection with the Ex-e USB interfaces (X5 and X7) is 2.5 m.

The insulation of the wire must reach right up to the terminal body.

2.7.4.2.2.1 Type 1 connection version

- The USB device does not require an external power supply as it uses less than 500 mA.
- No connection to the mains via other interfaces, e.g. WLAN stick.



Type 1 connection diagram (e.g. WLAN stick)

2.7.4.2.2.2 Type 2 connection version

- The USB device does require an external power supply to function because it uses over 500 mA, e.g. hard disks, CD/DVD drives.
- The USB device is connected to the mains via other interfaces, e.g. USB/serial converter, USB-Profibus interface.



Type 2 connection diagram (e.g. hard disk, CD/DVD with power supply)

## **3** Installation

### 3.1 General information

Electrical installations are subject to the relevant regulations for installation and operation, such as RL 1999/92/EC, RL 94/9EC, ElexV, IEC/EN 60079-14 and VDE 0100.

The operators of electrical installations in hazardous environments must ensure that the equipment is kept in proper condition, is operated according to instructions and that maintenance and repairs are carried out. (ElexV and EN 60079-14).

## 3.2 ET-306, ET-316, ET-336

- The operator interfaces may be installed in zones 1, 2, 21 or 22. The intrinsically safe circuits must be installed according to applicable regulations.
- Intrinsically safe and non intrinsically safe conducting connection parts must be installed with a minimum distance of 50 mm.
- The operator interfaces are constructed according to protection type IP65 and must therefore be protected from adverse environmental conditions such as splashed water or dirt exceeding pollution degree 2.
- If the operator interfaces are installed inside a STAHL field housing, the front has IP66. The complete system is therefore tested and certified according to IP66.
- Operators must ensure compliance with the EC type examination certificates before installation. Users must adhere to any "special conditions" therein. Also of importance are the maximum electrical operating values specified therein.
- When connecting the operator interfaces to the intrinsically safe circuits of the associated equipment the respective maximum values of the field unit and the associated equipment must be observed to ensure explosion protection (proof of intrinsic safety).
- The earth/ground (PA) connector at the back of the operator interface housing must be connected to the equipotential bonding conductor of the hazardous area. To prevent equalizing currents flowing to the earth/ground (PA) system of the operator interface it is necessary to safely isolate any connected devices from earth or to integrate them into the earth/ground (PA) system of the operator interface.
- The PA connection part of the operator interface, located at the back of the housing, is internally connected to the GND supply cable (X1, pins 3 and 4).
- Ex-e terminal blocks may be mounted inside the connection box of the housing. They can, for example, serve as a sub-distribution unit for supply and signal lines of accessories mounted in separate housings and connected to the Exicom device's interfaces. These terminal blocks are installed during production of the operator interface. Customers must not attempt to mount the blocks into the devices themselves.

## 4 Application

The operator interfaces may only be used for the purposes detailed above and in accordance with current regulations (see "Function"). Otherwise, the manufacturer's warranty shall become null and void !

In case of incorrect or unauthorized use or non-compliance with the instructions in this manual the manufacturer's warranty will become null and void.

No changes may be made to the operator interfaces or their components that compromise explosion protection.

The operator interfaces may only be installed and operated in an undamaged, dry and clean condition.

## **5** Assembly and disassembly

### 5.1 General information

Assembly and disassembly are subject to general technical rules. Additional, specific safety regulations apply to electronic and pneumatic installations. In Germany, for example, these include the BGI 547 (Information on and principles of workplace safety and health issued by the Government Safety Association).

### 5.2 Cut-out ET-3x6

Make a cut-out with the following dimensions:

Operator interface	Width	Height	Depth of cut-out	Material thickness
ET-306	385.5 ± 0.5 mm	257.5 ± 0.5 mm	150 mm	up to 8 mm
ET-316	357.5 ± 0.5 mm	257.5 ± 0.5 mm	150 mm	up to 8 mm
ET-336	427.5 ± 0.5 mm	327.5 ± 0.5 mm	165 mm	up to 8 mm

## 6 Operation

### 6.1 General information

When operating the devices, particular care shall be taken that:

- the operator interface has been properly installed according to instructions,
- the device is undamaged,
- the terminal compartment is clean,
- all screws are tightened fast,
- before switching the operator interface on, its external bonding terminal is properly connected to the exponential bonding system at its place of use,
- The cover of the terminal compartment is completely closed.

## 6.2 Connections ET-3x6

Terminal	Pin	Definition	Connection
X1	1	Power supply operator interface +24 VDC	Power supply
	2	Power supply operator interface +24 VDC	of the
	3	Power supply operator interface GND	operator interface
	4	Power supply operator interface GND	
X2	1	TxD-b	Serial
	2	TxD-a	COM1 interface
	3	RxD-b	RS-422/485
	4	RxD-a	
	5	TxD-b'	
	6	TxD-a'	
	7	RxD-b'	
	8	RxD-a'	
	9	TxD	Serial
	10	RxD	COM1 interface
	11	RTS/	RS-232
	12	CTS/	
	13	GND	
X3	1	TxD-b	Serial
	2	TxD-a	COM2 interface
	3	RxD-b	RS-422/485
	4	RxD-a	
	5	TxD-b'	
	6	TxD-a'	
	7	RxD-b'	
	8	RxD-a'	
	9	TxD	Serial
	10	RxD	COM2 interface
	11	RTS/	RS-232
	12	CTS/	
	13	GND	
X4		USB interface, connection type A	USB0 I.S. *
X5	1	VCC	USB1 Ex-e *
	2	USB -	
	3	USB +	
	4	GND	
X6	1	VCC	USB2 I.S. *
	2	USB -	
	3	USB +	
	4	GND	
X7	1	VCC	USB3 Ex-e *
	2	USB -	
	3	USB +	
	4	GND	

X8	0	+U_INT1	Reader interface
	1	+U_EX1	I.S.
	2	0V	
	3	GND	
	4	+U_RD	
	5	Signal 1	
	6	Signal 2	
	7	Signal 3	
	8	Signal 4	
	9	+U_EX1 (out)	
X9	1	VCC	External keyboard
	2	DAT	I.S. **
	3	CLK	
	4	GND	
X10	1	Optical fiber connection type SC	Ethernet optical
			fiber interface

 \* USB connections USB0 and USB2 as well as USB1 and USB3 are wired in parallel. The USB connections USB0 and USB2 as well as USB1 and USB3 must therefore <u>NOT</u> <u>BE USED AT THE SAME TIME !</u>

Please also note that the COM interfaces may only be physically connected once. The interconnection is either with a physical RS-232 or an RS-422/485 connection.

<sup>(27)</sup> \*\* Do **NOT** connect the optional external keyboard to live equipment !

### 6.2.1 Dip switch settings S3 and S4

Switch	Position	Interface	Function
S3-1	OFF		No bus terminator resistor set
	ON	COM1	Bus terminator resistor TxD line
S3-2	OFF	RS-422/485	No bus terminator resistor set
	ON		Bus terminator resistor RxD line
S4-1	OFF		No bus terminator resistor set
	ON	COM2	Bus terminator resistor TxD line
S4-2	OFF	RS-422/485	No bus terminator resistor set
	ON		Bus terminator resistor RxD line

## 6.3 Connections Ex-e terminals (X12)

Ex-e terminal blocks may be mounted inside the connection box of the housing. Because these terminal blocks are exclusively mounted during production, this option must be specified when ordering the product.

For devices with these optional terminal blocks, please note the following:

- Only Ex-e circuits may be connected to these terminal blocks !
- An interconnection of Ex-e and other circuits is not permitted !
- When connecting cables please ensure that the cable isolation goes right up to the terminal part.

#### 6.3.1 Connection details of the Ex-e terminals

Maximum nominal voltage:	275 V
Maximum nominal voltage:	
(if the fixed bridge bar is used):	175 V
Rated current:	4 A
Maximum rated current:	5 A
	Maximum nominal voltage: Maximum nominal voltage: (if the fixed bridge bar is used): Rated current: Maximum rated current:

### 6.3.2 Cable types and cross sections

Copper cables with the following cross sections may be used:

•	Maximum cable cross section in mm <sup>2</sup> (AWG)	4 (12)
•	Minimum cable cross section in mm <sup>2</sup> (AWG)	0.2 (24)

Multiple cable connection to the screw terminal (2 cables of the same cross section and cable type):

•	flexible mm <sup>2</sup> (AWG)	0.2 – 1.5 (24 – 16)
•	rigid mm² (AWG)	0.2 – 1.5 (24 – 16)

Which cable cross sections are chosen should be decided on the basis of relevant regulations, such as DIN VDE 0298. Factors that might require a larger cross section, such as current, increased temperatures, cable bundling, etc. must also be taken into account.

## 7 Maintenance, service

Associated equipment is subject to maintenance, service and testing according to guidelines 1999/92/EC, IEC 60079-19 and EN 60079-17 !

Because the transmission of the devices remains reliable and stable over long periods of time, regular adjustments are not required.

- Only original parts provided by the manufacturer must be used.
- Fuses may only be replaced by equivalent fuse types.

System maintenance should focus on the following:

- a. Seal wear
- b. Display damage
- c. All screws are tightened fast
- d. All cables and lines are properly connected and undamaged

### 7.1.1 Servicing

In accordance with IEC 60079-19 and EN 60079-17, operators of electric plants in hazardous areas are obliged to have them serviced by qualified electricians.

## 8 Troubleshooting

Devices operated in hazardous areas must not be modified. Repairs may only be carried out by qualified, authorized staff specially trained for this purpose.

Repairs may only be carried out by specially trained staff who are familiar with all basic conditions of the applicable user regulations and – if necessary – have been authorized by the manufacturer.

## 9 Disposal

Disposal of packaging and used parts is subject to regulations valid in whichever country the device has been installed.

The disposal of devices sold after August 13th, 2005, and installed in countries under the jurisdiction of the EU is governed by directive 2002/96/EC on waste electrical and electronic equipment (WEEE). Under this directive, operator interfaces are listed in category 9 (monitoring and control instruments).

We shall take back our devices according to our General Terms and Conditions.

#### 9.1.1 ROHS directive 2002/95/EC

The prohibition of hazardous substances as detailed in directive 2002/95/EC (ROHS) does not apply to electronic equipment of categories 8 and 9, and is therefore not applicable to the equipment described in these operating instructions.

#### 9.1.2 China ROHS labeling

According to new Chinese legislation in force since 01.03.2007, all devices containing hazardous substances must be labeled accordingly.

For our operator interfaces, the following conditions apply:

Part	Toxic or hazardous substances and elements					
Name	Lead (Pb)	Mercury (Hg)	Cadmium (Cd)	Hexa- valent Chromium (Cr (VI))	Poly- brominated Biphenyls (PBB)	Poly- brominated Diphenyl- ethers (PBDE)
Housing	0	0	0	0	0	0
Display	0	0	0	0	0	0
all PCBs	X	0	0	0	0	0
Miscellaneous	0	0	0	0	0	0

#### Names and contents of toxic or hazardous substances or elements:

O Indicates that this toxic or hazardous substance contained in all of the homogeneous materials for this part is below the limit requirements in SJ/T11363-2006.

X Indicates that this toxic or hazardous substance contained in at least one of the homogeneous materials for this part is below the limit requirements in SJ/T11363-2006.

## **10 Accessories**

## **10.1 Phoenix Contact terminal block**

### 10.1.1 Data sheet Mini-Ex-terminal

Please note that when connected to the operator interfaces the connection values for the explosion proof terminals are limited (see also <u>Chapter 6.3.1</u> ff) !



#### Mini-Terminal Block MBK

Article description Article no.	MBK 3/E-Z * 1413036 *	
EC-TYPE EXAMINATION CERTIFICATE	KEMA 01ATEX2134U *	
Marking	Ex e II KEMA 01ATEX2134U	and a set of the set o
Assembly on mounting rails Stripping length Torque	NS 15 acc. to EN 60715-TH 15 8 mm 0,6 - 0,8 Nm	
Assembly instructions	See page 2	
Operating temperature range	-50 °C +110 °C	KEMA ₹

#### Technical data according to EN 60079-7 (increased safety "e")

Rated insulation voltage Rated voltage	250 V 275 V		
Nominal current	22,5 A		
Max. rated current	28 A		
Connection capacity			
Rated cross-section	2,5 mm²		AWG 14
Max. conductor cross-sec	tion 4 mm <sup>2</sup>		AWG 12
Connectable conductor cross-section	0.2 - 4 mm² riai 0,2 - 2,5 mm² flex	d kible	AWG 24 - 12 AWG 24 - 14

#### Multi-conductor connection (2 conductors of the same cross-section)

rigid / flowible	0,2 - 4 mm² rigid	AWG 24 - 12	
ngia / nexible	0,2 - 2,5 mm²flexible	AWG 24 - 14	
	o,E E,o min nombro		

#### Data of insulation material

Butte of integration interested				
Description	PA 6.6			
Creep resistance acc. to IEC 60112 / material group	CTI 600 / I			
Accessories	Description	Article no.		
Cover	D-MBK/E	1415021		
Fixed bridge bar	FBRI 10-5 N	2770642	22,0 A / 2,5 mm² 22.5 A / 4 mm²	

\* valid for colour variants

2006.03.29 Rev. 00 Technical modifications reserved Phoenix Contact GmbH & Co. KG Flachsmarktstraße 8 32825 Blomberg Page 1 of 2

#### Important assembly instructions - increased safety "e"

When assembling with other certified series and sizes of Terminal Blocks and using belonging accessories, the required creepage distances and clearances have to be observed.

When using the fixed bridge bars to achieve a skipped bridging the rated voltage is reduced to 176 V.

The Terminal Blocks and their belonging accessories have to be assembled as specified below.



#### Operational instructions - Intrinsic safety "i"

EN 60079-14 Clause 12 describes modular terminal blocks as simple apparatus when used in intrinsicallysafe circuits. Testing by a notified body and marking is not required. If terminal blocks be identifiable as part of an intrinsically circuit are marked by a colour, the colour used shall be light blue.

Testing for compliance to intrinsically safe requirements including clearance, creepage, and solid insulation distances specified in EN 60079-0 (EN 50014) and EN 60079-11 (EN 50020) have been performed for circuits up to **60 V**.

Compliance with distance requirements of EN 60079-14 Clause 12.2.3 for the connection of separated intrinsically-safe circuit accessories is met. A minimum distance of 50 mm to separate clamping units of intrinsically-safe and non intrinsically-safe circuits is required through the use of a separating plate or similar device.

Phoenix Contact GmbH & Co. KG Flachsmarktstraße 8 32825 Blomberg Germany

+49 - (0) 52 35 - 3-00
 +49 - (0) 52 35 - 3-4 12 00
 www.phoenixcontact.com

2006.03.29 Rev. 00 Technical modifications reserved



Page 2 of 2

## **11 Certificates**

### 11.1 Exicom ET-306, ET-316, ET-336

#### 11.1.1 Declaration of EC conformity

EG - Konformitätserklärung EC-Declaration of Conformity CE-Déclaration de Conformité



Wir/ We /Nous

R. STAHL HMI Systems GmbH Im Gewerbegebiet Pesch 14 D-50767 Köln

erklären in alleiniger Verantwortung dass unser Produkt declare under our sole responsibility that the product attestons sous notre responsabilité que le produit

Exicom ET - 306, ET - 316, ET - 336, ET - 406, ET - 416, ET - 436

auf welches sich diese Erkärung bezieht, mit der /den folgenden Norm(en) oder normativen Dokumenten übereinstimmt which is the subject of this declaration, is in conformity with the following standard(s) or normative documents

auquel cette déclaration se rapporte, est conforme aux norme(s) ou aux documents normatifs suivants

Bestimmung der Richtlinie	Titel und/oder Nr. sowie Ausgabedatum der Norm
Terms of the directive	Titel and/or No. and date of issue of the standard
Prescription de la directive	Titre et/ou No. Ainsi que date démission des normes
94/9/EG : Geräte und Schutzsysteme zur bestimmungsgemäßen Verwendung in explositionsgefährdeten Bereichen 94/9/EC: Equipment and potective systems intended for use in potentially explosive atmospheres 94/9/CE: Appareils et systémes de protection destinés á êtré utilisés en atmosphères explosibles	EN 60079-0 (2004) EN 60079-1 (2004) EN 60079-7 (2003) EN 60079-18 (2004) prEN 60079-28 (2005) EN 50020 (2002) prEN 61241-0 (2004) EN 61241-1 (2004)
98/336/EWG : Elektromagnetische Verträglichkeit 98/336/EEC: Elektromagnetic compatibility 98/336/CEE: Compatibilité electromagnétique	EN 61000-6-2 (2002) EN 61000-6-4 (2002)
EG-Baumusterprüfbescheinigung: EC-Type Examination Certificate Attestation d´examen CE de type	TÜV 05 ATEX 7176 X
Köln, den 04.11.2005	Duren M.Bot

Werner Bertges Quality Manager

© R.STAHL Systems GmbH

Place and date

lieu et date

Technical Director

exicom et-3xx\_et-4xx\_konf.doc

Page 28 of 52

### 11.1.2 EC type examination certificate

	CERT		TÜV Rheir	ıland Group
(1)	EC-TYPE-E	EXAMINATI	ON CERTIFIC	ATE
(2)	Equipment and Protect	ive Systems intended fo	r Use in	$\overline{c}$
(3)	EC-Type-Examination	Certificate Number	10/20	(EX/
		TUV 05 A	TEX 7176 X	
(4)	Equipment: EXIC	COM ET-306; ET-316	; ET-336; ET-406; ET-416;	ET-436
(5)	Manufacturer: R. S	TAHL HMI Systems	GmbH	
(6)	Address: Im G D - 5	ewerbegebiet Pescl 0767 Köln	n 14	
(7)	This equipment and an certificate and the docu	y acceptable variation th ments referred to.	ereto are specified in the sch	edule to this
(8)	The TÜV CERT-Zertifiz GmbH, TÜV Rheinland the Council Directive 94 to comply with the Esse construction of equipme eyplosive atmosphere,	tierungsstelle for ex-pro Group, Notified Body N 4/9/EC of 23 March 1994 ential Health and Safety ent and protective syste given in Annex II to the	tected products of TÜV Indust o. 0035 in accordance with Al 4, certifies this equipment has Requirements relating to the ms intended for use in potenti Directive.	rticle 9 of been found design and ally
	The examination and te	est results are recorded	in the confidential report 194	/Ex 176.00 / 05
(9)	Compliance with the Es compliance with	ssential Health and Safe	ty Requirements has been as	sured by
	EN 60079-0: 2004	EN 60079-1: 2004	EN 60079-7: 2003	
	EN 60079-18: 2004	EN 50020:2002	prEN 60079-28: 2005	
(10)	If the sign "X" is placed	after the certificate num	nber, it indicates that the equip schedule to this certificate.	oment is subject to
(11)	This EC-type-examinat equipment in accordan the manufacture and s	tion Certificate relates of ce with Directive 94/9/E upply of this equipment.	nly to the design and construc C. Further requirements of thi	tion of the specified s Directive apply to
(12)	The marking of the equ	upment shall include the	e following:	
	<ul> <li>⟨E⟩    2 (2) G</li> <li>   2 D</li> </ul>	Ex d e mb ib [ib] Ex tD A21 IP65 T	[op is] IIC T4 「90°C	
-	TÜV CERT-Zertifizierun DiplIng. Heinz Farke	gsstelle für Explosions	chutz Cologne, :	2005-10-25





## **1st Supplement**

in accordance with directive 94/9/EC Appendix III, No. 6

## to EU Type Test Certificate TÜV 05 ATEX 7176 X

Devi	ices:	EXICOM ET -306; -316; -336; -406; -416; -436
Man	ufacturer:	R. Stahl HMI Systems GmbH
Addı	ress:	Im Gewerbegebiet Pesch 14 D- 50 767 Cologne
<u>Des</u> - - -	Cription of Suppl The original verse were expanded Additional Ex-ent accessories com Expansion of the Expansion of the equipment to int with an external Reduction of the of the CPU and The tables for the replace the corre	<ul> <li>dements and Amendments:</li> <li>sions of the EXICOM ET -306; -316; -336; -406; -416; -436 devices by the following:</li> <li>terminals (X12) in the terminal box for the distribution of external nected to the interfaces of the operator terminal.</li> <li>e number of approved cable gland types and dimensions.</li> <li>e device description in respect to the possibility of connecting erfaces USB 1 and USB 3 with an external power supply, protected fuse having a switching capacity of &gt;1.5kA.</li> <li>e admissible ambient temperature range depending on the clock rates the resulting higher internal heating.</li> <li>e external intrinsically safe circuits have been adjusted and completely esponding tables in the original certificate.</li> </ul>

This EU Type Test Certificate may only be circulated without alterations. Extracts or alterations must be approved by TÜV CERT-Zertifizierungsstelle of TÜV Industrie Service GmbH, TÜV Rheinland Group

Page 1 / 8



#### Technical Data

Only the data related to the 1st Supplement are provided, all other data remain unchanged in relation to the original certificate.

Ambient Temperature Range:

	-10°C	to	+40°C
or	-10°C	to	+50°C
or	-10°C	to	+60°C

The appropriate specifications are provided on the device and they depend on the clock rate of the internal CPU.

#### Electrical Specifications:

External non-intrinsically safe circuits:

All parameters of the external non-intrinsically safe circuits in the original certificate remain unchanged and are expanded by the terminals on terminal strip X12.

Ex-e terminals for accessories (X12):	
Max. rated voltage without cross-connectors jumping over	275 V
Max. rated voltage with cross-connectors jumping over	175 V
Rated current	4 A
Max. load current	5 A

Connectable copper conductor cross sections:

- Max. cross section in mm<sup>2</sup> (AWG) 4 (12)
- Min. cross section in mm<sup>2</sup> (AWG) 0.2 (24)

Multiwire cable connected to the screw terminal (2 conductor of the same cross section and same type)

Flexible mm<sup>2</sup> (AWG) 0.2 – 1.5 (24 – 16)

- Rigid mm<sup>2</sup> (AWG) 0.2 - 1.5 (24 - 16)

The conductor cross section must be selected according to defined standards such as DIN VDE 0298. Current load, excessive temperatures, bundling of cables, etc. must be taken into consideration. Any resulting reduction factors must be taken into consideration.

This EU Type Test Certificate may only be circulated without alterations. Extracts or alterations must be approved by TÜV CERT-Zertifizierungsstelle of TÜV Industrie Service GmbH, TÜV Rheinland Group

Page 2 / 8



External intrinsically safe circuits:

Note: It is allowed to connect the capacities and inductances specified in the tables simultaneously.

The following corrected tables replace the existing tables in Section 4.5.2 of the EC Type Test TÜV 05 ATEX 7176 X dated 25 October 2005:

USB-0 (X4)

The maximum safe limits for group IIC are:

Ui	=	-	V	U。	=	5.9	v			
l <sub>i</sub>	=	-	mA	I.	=	1.02	A			
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	6.02	W			
Ci	=	0	μF	C.	=	8	13	30	43	μF
L	11	0	mH	L。	=	10	5	2	1	μH

The maximum safe limits for group IIB are:

Ui	=	-	V	U <sub>o</sub>	=	5.9	V			
li –	=	-	mA	١o	=	1.02	A			
Pi	=	-	mW	P。	=	6.02	w			
Ci	=	0	μF	C。	=	14	26	50	89	μF
L <sub>i</sub>	=	0	mH	Lo	=	0.1	0.05	0.02	0.01	mH

#### USB-2 (X6)

The maximum safe limits for group IIC are:

Ui	=	:	-	V	U.	=	5.9	v			
li	=	:	-	mA	l <sub>o</sub>	=	1.02	A			
Pi		:	-	mW	P。	=	6.02	w			
Ci	=	:	0	μF	C <sub>o</sub>	=	8	13	30	43	μF
Li	=	:	0	mH	L。	=	10	5	2	1	μH

The maximum safe limits for group IIB are:

Ui	=	-	v	U。	=	5.9	v			
l <sub>i</sub>	=	-	mA	١o	=	1.02	A			
Pi	=	-	mW	P。	=	6.02	W			
Ci	=	0	μF	C.	=	14	26	50	89	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	0.1	0.05	0.02	0.01	mH

This EU Type Test Certificate may only be circulated without alterations. Extracts or alterations must be approved by TÜV CERT-Zertifizierungsstelle of TÜV Industrie Service GmbH, TÜV Rheinland Group

Page 3 / 8



#### Reader (X8)

+Uint-1 (power supply circuit, X8.0)

The maximum safe limits for group IIC are:

Ui	=	-	V	U <sub>o</sub>	=	10.4	V
l,	=	-	mA	I.	=	220	mA
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	2.29	w
Ci	=	-	μF	C.	=	2.41	μF
L	=	-	mH	Lo		0.02	mH

The maximum safe limits for group IIB are:

Ui	=	-	v	U。	=	10.4	v
li –	=	-	mĄ	I,	=	220	mA
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	2.29	w
Ci	=	-	μF	Co	=	12	μF
L	=	-	mH	Lo	=	50	μH

Reader WCR1 (connection for supply voltage, X8.1 - 2)

The maximum safe limits for group IIC are:

Ui	=	12.4	V	U,	=	-	v
li –	=	200	mA	l <sub>o</sub>	=	-	mA
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	-	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	-	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	-	mH

The maximum safe limits for group IIB are:

Ui	=	12.4	V	U.	=	-	v
l,	=	200	mA	10	=	-	mA
Pi	=	-	mW	P。	=	-	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	C.	=	-	μF
L	=	0	mH	Lo	=	-	mH

This EU Type Test Certificate may only be circulated without alterations. Extracts or alterations must be approved by TÜV CERT-Zertifizierungsstelle of TÜV Industrie Service GmbH, TÜV Rheinland Group

Page 4 / 8



#### Reader WCR1 (power supply for reader, X8.3 - 4)

The maximum safe limits for group IIC are:

U	=	-	V	U <sub>o</sub>	=	5.88	V
$\mathbf{I}_{i}$	=	-	mA	I.	=	200	mA
Pi	=	-	mW	P。	=	1.18	w
Ci	=	4.6	μF	Co	=	28.4	μF
Li	=	100	nH	L。	=	1.9	μH

The maximum safe limits for group IIB are:

Ui	=	-	V	U。	=	5.88	v
li –	=	-	mA	I <sub>o</sub>	=	200	mA
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	1.18	W
Ci	=	4.6	μF	Co	=	56.4	μF
Li	=	100	nH	Lo	=	19.9	μH

#### Reader WCR1 (signal inputs and outputs, X8.5 - 8)

The maximum safe limits for group IIC are:

Ui	=	15	V	U₀	=	5.88	V
1 <sub>i</sub>	=	500	mA	lo	=	56	mA
Pi	=	2.5	w	Po	=	83	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	C <sub>o</sub>	=	34	μF
L	=	0	mH	Lo	=	2	μH

The maximum safe limits for group IIB are:

Ui	=	15	V	U。	=	5.88	V
li	=	500	mA	l <sub>o</sub>	=	56	mA
Pi	=	2.5	W	Po	=	83	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	C,	=	63	μF
L	=	0	mH	Lo	=	20	μH

This EU Type Test Certificate may only be circulated without alterations. Extracts or alterations must be approved by TÜV CERT-Zertifizierungsstelle of TÜV Industrie Service GmbH, TÜV Rheinland Group

Page 5/8

504 04.04



#### Reader RSi1 (connection for supply voltage, X8.1 - 2)

The maximum safe limits for group IIC are:

Ui	=	12.4	V	U。	=	-	v
li –	=	220	mA	I.	=	-	mA
Pi	=	2.7	w	P。	=	-	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	-	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	-	mH

The maximum safe limits for group IIB are:

U	=	12.4	v	U。	=	-	V
i,	=	220	mA	I.	=	-	mA
Pi	=	2.7	w	P。	=	-	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	C.	=		μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	-	mH

Reader RSi1 (power supply for reader, X8.3 - 4)

The maximum safe limits for group IIC are:

ι	Ji	=	-	v	U。	=	5.4	V
I	i	=	-	mA	I.	=	220	mA
F	<b>,</b>	=	-	w	Po	=	1.19	w
C	2	=	4.2	μF	C.	=	39.8	μF
L	-i	=	100	nH	Lo	=	1.9	μH

#### The maximum safe limits for group IIB are:

Ui	=	-	V	U,	=	5.4	V
l <sub>i</sub>	=	-	mA	I.	=	220	mA
Pi	=	-	W	Po	=	1.19	w
Ci	=	4.2	μF	C <sub>o</sub>	=	69.8	μF
Li	=	100	nH	L.	=	19.9	μH

This EU Type Test Certificate may only be circulated without alterations. Extracts or alterations must be approved by TÜV CERT-Zertifizierungsstelle of TÜV Industrie Service GmbH, TÜV Rheinland Group

Page 6 / 8



#### Reader RSi1 (signal inputs outputs, X8.5 - 8)

Ui	=	15	V	Uo	=	5.4	V.
li	=	500	mA	lo	=	49	mA
Pi	=	2.5	w	Po	=	62	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	Co	=	45	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	2	μH

The maximum safe limits for group IIC are:

The maximum safe limits for group IIB are:

Ui	=	15	v	U.	=	5.4	v
l <sub>i</sub>	=	500	mA	I <sub>o</sub>	=	49	mA
Pi	=	2.5	W	Po	=	62	mW
Ci	=	0	μF	C.	=	78	μF
Li	=	0	mH	Lo	=	20	mH

#### Keyboard (X7)

The maximum safe limits for group IIC are:

Ui	=	-	V	U <sub>o</sub>	=	5.9	V	
li	=	-	mA	I.	=	200	mA	
Pi	=	-	mW	P。	=	1.18	w	
Ci	=	14	μF	C.	=	19	29	μF
L	=	0	mH	Lo	=	2	1	μH

The maximum safe limits for group IIB are:

Ui	=	-	V	U <sub>o</sub>	=	5.9	v			
li -	=	-	mA	l <sub>o</sub>	=	200	mA			
Pi	=	-	mW	Po	=	1.18	w			
Ci	=	14	μF	C.	=	13	23	46	86	μF
Li	=	0	mH	L	=	100	50	20	10	μH

This EU Type Test Certificate may only be circulated without alterations. Extracts or alterations must be approved by TÜV CERT-Zertifizierungsstelle of TÜV Industrie Service GmbH, TÜV Rheinland Group

Page 7 / 8

9/504 04/04



Test Report No. : 194 / Ex 176.01 / 06

#### Requirements/conditions for the reliable use and remarks on use

The original EC Type Test Certificate TÜV 05 ATEX 7176 X must be observed.

TÜV - CERT - Zertifizierungsstelle für Explosionsschutz

Dipl.-Ing. Heinz Farke

Cologne, 31 May 2006

This EU Type Test Certificate may only be circulated without alterations. Extracts or alterations must be approved by TÜV CERT-Zertifizierungsstelle of TÜV Industrie Service GmbH, TÜV Rheinland Group

4 04.04

Page 8 / 8

#### 11.1.3 UL certificate

#### Comment:

The UL certificate listed here is only valid for the operator interfaces of hardware revision 1 (without the 1. supplement) !

















### 11.1.4 UL do Brasil certificate

#### Comment:

The UL do Brasil certificate listed here is only valid for the operator interfaces of hardware revision 1 (without the 1. supplement) !

	UL	do	Br	a s	i I	Ce	r t	ifi	c a	çõ	es
	(	Certi	fica	do	de )6/UL-BF		for	mid	lade	9	
		in Chinese						and the second second	- Internation		
			Solicitante: (113899-001)		INSTR Rua L 21042 CNPJ	RUMENTOS uiz Ferreira -210 – Rio e : 29.359.17	LINCE L a, 84 de Janeir 1/0001-93	TDA o – RJ – E	Brasil		
			Fabricante: (100041-435)		R STA Im Ge 50767 CNPJ	HL HMI SY werbegebie Cologne, ( Não Aplic	STEMS ( et Pesch Sermany ável	GMBH 14			
			Este certific descrito(s)	ado aplic	a-se ao(s) ce a este (	produto(s) Certificado e	abaixo n nos docu	elacionado imentos ne	(s), estan ele relacior	do o(s) m nados.	iesmo(s)
			EXIC	OM PARA	A USO EM EXICOM F	ATMOSFE	RAS PO	TENCIALN	ATION"	PLOSIVA	IS
				Modelo/	Tipo: ET-3	06, ET-316,	ET-336,	ET-406, E	T-416 e E	T-436.	
		-			Nú	mero de Sé	irie: Não	Aplicável			
					Nú	imero do Lo	ote: Não	Aplicável			
			UL do Bras NMETRO com a(s) s EC 60079-	l Certifica segundo c eguinte(s) 11:1999 e	ções sendo registro N Norma(s) IEC 6007	o um Organ No.: OCP-00 : IEC 6007 9-18:2004.	ismo de ( 29 confin <b>9-0:2000,</b>	Certificação ma que o IEC 6007	o de Produ produto es 79-1:2001,	ito, creder stá em cor IEC 600	nciado pelo nformidade 79-7:2001,
	10		Marcação b	ásica do p	produto: Bl	R-Ex d e mi 10 °C ≤ Tan	o ib [ib] II nb ≤ +60	С Т4 °С			
	NY TELEP		Número do	Relatório	de Avaliaç	ão e Ensaio	BR1471	/ Volume	1/ Seção	1/ 2006	
	~	5	A empresa responsabil descritas no de rotina ap	licenciad idade de g Apêndice licáveis.	la, respon garantir qu e a este ce	sável pelo le o produto ertificado e o	produto i está em que a mes	referenciac conformic sma execu	lo neste lade com ita as verit	certificado as especi ïcações e	o, tem a ificações ensaios
			De acordo o icenciada Certificaçõe	com a Por está auto s sobre o(	rtaria nº 83 prizada a (s) produto	de 03 de a ostentar a (s) relaciona	Marca Marca ado(s) nes	006 e RA de Confo ste certifica	C do INM rmidade ido.	ETRO, a d da UL d	empresa o Brasil
	PY.	ER	missão: ( evisão: -	1 de sete	mbro de 2	2006					
			andade: 3	a de agos	sto de 200	18					
			Varco Anto Presidente	Brasil Cer B Lo onio Buco	tificações PUC iarelli Ro	que				Certificași de Produs	
A		4		Esta	a licença acom	ipanhada de seu e ao(s) endereç	apêndice es co(s) acima c	tá vinculada a itado(s).	um contrato	7	
A	(UL		)	Est	e Certificado	o só é válido a	acompanha	ado de seu A	Apêndice.	OCP 003	BR
-						UL DO BRAS Rua Fidêncio 04551-010 Vila Olis CNPJ: 04.	11. CERTIFICAG Ramos, 195 - 5 : npia - São Paulo 830. 102/0001-95	rÕES indar – SP – Brasil			41-IC-F0027 Rev.: 1.1

#### 11.1.5 Gost certificate

#### Comment:

The Gost certificate listed here is only valid for the operator interfaces of hardware revision 1 (without the 1. supplement) !

You can find the complete certificate at chapter 9 of the hardware manual, it can be downloaded from the homepage of R. STAHL HMI Systems GmbH or you can request it by R. STAHL HMI Systems GmbH.

СИСТЕМА СЕРТИФИКАЦИИ ГО ГОССТАНДАРТ РОССИИ	СТ Р
СЕРТИФИКАТ СООТВ	ЕТСТВИЯ
РСт <sub>№</sub> РОСС DE.ГБ04.В00566	~
Срок действия с 30.04.2006 г по 3	80.04.2009 г.
	6618005
ОРГАН ПО СЕРТИФИКАЦИИ	
Рег. № РОСС RU.0001.11ГБ04 ЦЕНТР СЕРТИФИКАЦИИ «СТВ» 607190, г. Саров Нижегородской обл., пр. Мира, 37 телефон 454-78, факс 455-30	
ΠΡΟΛΥΚΙΙИЯ	n na
Пульты оператора на основе терминалов управления EXICOM типа ET- 306, ET-316, ET- 336, ET- 406, ET-416, ET- 436 с маркировкой взрывозащиты 2Exdemib[ib]snAllCT4X и защиты от воспламенения горючей пыли DIP A21 T <sub>A</sub> 90°C, IP65 в соответствии с приложением к сертификату;	код ОК 005 (ОКП):
серийный выпуск	
соответствует требованиям нормативных документое	B
FOCT P 51330.0-99         FOCT P 51330.14-99           FOCT P 51330.1-99         FOCT P 51330.17-99           FOCT P 51330.8-99         FOCT P M3K 61241-1-1-99           FOCT P 51330.10-99         FOCT 22782.3-77	код ТН ВЭД России: 8471 90 000 0
ИЗГОТОВИТЕЛЬ	
R.Stahl HMI Systems GmbH Im Gewerbegebiet Pesch 14 D-50767 Köln, Deutschland	
СЕРТИФИКАТ ВЫДАН R.Stahl HMI Systems GmbH Im Gewerbegebiet Pesch 14 D-50767 Köln, Deutschland Телефон: +49(0)221 59808-200, Факс: +49(0)221 59808-260	. )
НА ОСНОВАНИИ	
отчета по сертификации № С3-688/06 от 25.04.2006 г. Центра сертификации " RU.0001.11ГБ04)	CTB" (Per. № POCC
	) c
ДОПОЛНИТЕЛЬНАЯ ИНФОРМАЦИЯ Специальные условия безопасного применения - в соответствии с Дополне	нием к сертификату
Руководитель органа Эноника	В.В. Байрак
Эксперт	В.Н. Липавский инициалы, фамилия
Сертифика имеет юрилическую силу на всей территории Росси	йской Федерации



### **11.2 Phoenix Contact terminal block**

#### 11.2.1 EC type examination certificate



Translation, original language: German

## (b) EC-TYPE EXAMINATION CERTIFICATE

- (2) Equipment and protective systems intended for use in potentially explosive atmospheres - Directive 94/9/EC
- (3) EC-Type Examination Certificate Number: KEMA 01ATEX2134 U
- (4) Component: Terminal Blocks MBK 3/E-Z; MBK 6/E Protective Conductor Terminal Block MSLKG 6
- (5) Manufacturer: Phoenix Contact GmbH & Co. KG
- (6) Address: Flachsmarktstraße 8, D-32825 Blomberg, Germany.
- (7) This component and any acceptable variation thereto is specified in the schedule to this certificate and the documents therein referred to.
- (8) KEMA Quality B.V., notified body number 0344 in accordance with Article 9 of the Council Directive 94/9/EC of 23 March 1994, certifies that this component has been found to comply with the Essential Health and Safety Requirements relating to the design and construction of equipment and protective systems intended for use in potentially explosive atmospheres given in Annex II to the directive.

The examination and test results are recorded in confidential report no. 2092788.

(9) Compliance with the Essential Health and Safety Requirements has been assured by compliance with:

EN 60079-0 : 2004 EN 60079-7 : 2003

EN 50281-1-1 : 1998 + A1

- (10) The sign "U" placed after the certificate number indicates that this certificate describes components and must not be mistaken for a certificate intended for an equipment or protective system. This EC-Type Examination Certificate may be used as a basis for certification of an equipment or protective system.
- (11) This EC-Type Examination Certificate relates only to the design, examination and tests of the specified component according to the Directive 94/9/EC. Further requirements of the directive apply to the manufacturing process and supply of this component. These are not covered by this certificate.
- (12) The marking of the component shall include the following:

Amhem, 15 May 2006 KEMA Quality B.V.		
T. Pijpker Certification Manager	Re-issued Page 1/3	

Integral publication of this certificate and adjoining reports is allowed. This Certificate may only be reproduced in its entirety and without any change.

KEMA Quality B.V. Utrechtseweg 310, 6812 AR Arnhem P.O. Box 5185, 6802 ED Arnhem The Netherlands T +31 26 3 56 20 00 F +31 26 3 52 58 00 customer@kema.com www.kema.com Registered Arnhem 09085396

Experience you can trust.



#### SCHEDULE (13)

#### (14) to EC-Type Examination Certificate KEMA 01ATEX2134 U

#### (15) Description

The Terminal Blocks (all colours) MBK 3/E-Z and MBK 6/E as well as the Protective Conductor Terminal Block MSLKG 6 with accessories, are intended for the connection of copper conductors in enclosures in type of protection increased safety "e" or "D" (dust). Fixing is made on mounting rails type NS 15 according to EN 60715-TH 15.

Operating temperature range: -50 °C ... +110 °C.

#### Electrical data

Terminal blocks

Type: Rated insulation voltage [V] Rated voltage [V] - with skipping jumper [V] Nominal current [A] Max. load current [A] with jumper	MBK 3/E-Z 250 275 176 22,5 28	MBK 6/E 250 275 275 37 49
<ul> <li>rated cross section [A]</li> <li>max. conductor cross section [A]</li> <li>Rated cross section [mm<sup>2</sup>] (AWG)</li> <li>Connectable conductor cross section</li> </ul>	22 25,5 2,5 (14)	33 39,5 6 (10)
<ul> <li>rigid [mm²] (AWG)</li> <li>flexible [mm²] (AWG)</li> <li>Multi-conductor connection (2 conductors with same cross section and conductor type)</li> </ul>	0,2 - 4 (24 - 12) 0,2 - 2,5 (24 - 14)	0,5 - 10 (20 - 8) 0,5 - 6 (20 - 10)
- rigid [mm²] (AWG) - flexible [mm²] (AWG)	0,2 - 1,5 (24 - 16) 0,2 - 1,5 (24 - 16)	0,5 - 2,5 (20 - 14) 0,5 - 2,5 (20 - 14)
A section [mm <sup>2</sup> ] (AWG) Connectable conductor cross section - rigid [mm <sup>2</sup> ] (AWG) - flexible [mm <sup>2</sup> ] (AWG)	MSLKG 6 6 (10) 0,5 - 10 (20 - 8) 0,5 - 6 (20 - 10)	

Page 2/3

A051E1.0 MEAN-P-Ex31 v2.0



#### (13) SCHEDULE

#### (14) to EC-Type Examination Certificate KEMA 01ATEX2134 U

#### Installation instructions

The Terminal Blocks and the Protective Conductor Terminal Block are suitable for use in enclosures in atmospheres with flammable gases or combustible dust. For flammable gases these enclosures must satisfy the requirements according to EN 60079-0 and EN 60079-7. For combustible dust these enclosures must satisfy the requirements according to EN 50281-1-1. When assembling with other certified series and sizes and using belonging accessories, the required creepage distances and clearances have to be observed.

Regarding the use of covers, cross-connectors and end brackets the instructions of the manufacturer must be followed.

If smaller cross sections as the rated cross section are used, the belonging lower current has to be laid down in the EC-Type Examination Certificate of the complete apparatus.

The Terminal Blocks may be used, based on the self-heating when used at the above mentioned rated current and at ambient temperatures of -50 °C to +40 °C at the mounting position in electrical apparatus, e.g. junction and connection boxes, for temperature class T6. When the Terminal Blocks are used in electrical apparatus of temperature classes T1 up to T5, the highest temperature of the insulating material shall not exceed the maximum value of the operating temperature range.

#### **Routine tests**

Routine dielectric strength tests according to EN 60079-7, Clause 7.2 in combination with Clause 6.1, have to be carried out.

#### (16) Report

KEMA No. 2092788.

(17) Special conditions for safe use

None.

#### (18) Essential Health and Safety Requirements

Covered by the standards listed at (9).

#### (19) Test documentation

As listed in Test Report No. 2092788.

Page 3/3



original language : German

#### translation

AMENDMENT 1

to EC-Type Examination Certificate KEMA 01ATEX2134 U

Manufacturer: Phoenix Contact GmbH & Co. KG

Address: Flachsmarktstraße 8, D-32825 Blomberg, Germany

#### Description

In future the Series Terminal Blocks Types MBK 3/E-Z and MBK 6/E and Protective Conductor Terminal Block Type MSLKG 6 may also be constructed according the documentation stated below.

The change concerns the extension of the operating temperature to -50°C to +80°C.

All other data remain unchanged.

#### **Test documentation**

dated

1. Description (3 sheets)

07.09.2001 / 20.09.2001

Arnhem, 15 September 2003 KEMA Quality B.V.

T. Pijpker Certification Manager

[2036532] Page 1/1

© This Amendment may only be reproduced in its entirety and without any change